

LCB File No. R006-09

**PROPOSED REGULATION OF THE
PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF NEVADA**

(This regulation was previously adopted as T010-08)

Docket No. 07-06016

EXPLANATION – Matter in *italics* is new; matter in brackets ~~omitted material~~ is to be omitted.

AUTHORITY: NRS 703.025, 704.210, 704.6873

Section 1. Chapter 704 of NAC is hereby amended by adding thereto the provisions set forth as Section 2 through Section 14 of this regulation.

Sec. 2. *As used in this chapter, unless the context otherwise requires, the words and terms defined in Sections 3 through 12, inclusive, have the meanings ascribed to them in those sections.*

Sec. 3. *“Basic network service” defined. “Basic network service” has the meaning ascribed to it in NRS 704.006.*

Sec. 4. *“Basic network service provided by an alternative technology” defined. “Basic network service provided by an alternative technology” is service provided to a customer through an alternative technology, as the term is defined in NRS 704.68881(5).*

Sec. 5. *“Competitive eligible telecommunications carrier” defined. “Competitive eligible telecommunications carrier” has the meaning ascribed to it in 47 C.F.R. § 54.5.*

Sec. 6. *“Competitive supplier” defined. “Competitive supplier” has the meaning ascribed to it in NRS 704.011.*

Sec. 7. *“High-cost area” defined. “High-cost area” means an area determined by the Commission where support from the fund to maintain the availability of telephone service should be made available to eligible telecommunications carriers pursuant to NAC 704.68048 for areas served by small-scale providers of last resort and pursuant to NAC 704.6805 for areas served by competitive suppliers who are providers of last resort.*

Sec. 8. *“Incumbent local exchange carrier” defined. Incumbent local exchange carrier has the meaning ascribed to it in 47 C.F.R. § 51.5.*

Sec. 9. *“Insular: defined. “Insular” means an area that is not within or contiguous to any Metropolitan Statistical Area as defined by the Office of Management and Budget.*

Sec. 10. *“Provider of last resort” defined. “Provider of last resort” has the meaning ascribed to it in NRS 704.018.*

Sec. 11. *Small-scale provider of last resort” defined. “Small-scale provider of last resort” has the meaning ascribed to it in NRS 704.023.*

Sec. 12. *“Supported services” defined. “Supported services” has the meaning ascribed to it in 47 CFR § 54.101.*

Sec. 13. *“Telecommunication service” defined. “Telecommunication service” has the meaning ascribed to it in NRS 704.028.*

Sec. 14. 1. *A competitive supplier that is a provider of last resort may request that the Commission open a proceeding to determine that money is required to fulfill the purpose of the fund to maintain the availability of telephone service pursuant to NAC 704.68043(1).*

All providers of telecommunication service contributing to the fund to maintain the availability of telephone service may participate in the proceeding.

2. *The Commission shall:*

(a) *Determine a cost model to calculate the per-line cost for the service area or other appropriate geographic area of the competitive supplier that is a provider of last resort;*

(b) *Adopt the appropriate benchmark using the per-line costs to determine high-cost support;*

(c) *Determine the appropriate high-cost support amount, taking into account the cost of maintaining the availability of telephone service with regard to rural, insular and high-cost areas while providing for services that are reasonably comparable to those basic services available in urban areas at rates that are reasonably comparable to those charged in the urban areas, and the overall size of the fund to maintain the availability of telephone service.*

3. *The Commission will on a biennial basis determine whether any adjustments or modifications are required to calculate the appropriate support amounts determined pursuant to subsection 2. The Commission may conduct such a proceeding annually upon its own motion or a motion from another interested person.*

Sec. 15. NAC 704.0055 is hereby amended to read as follows:

“Basic service” defined. “Basic service” means the provision of ~~[intraexchange]~~ telephone service ~~[and access to long distance services,]~~ *furnished to a customer that provides access to the public switched telephone network*, which includes a single-party ~~[or multi-party]~~ access line or trunk, ~~[a]~~ dial tone, ~~[a]~~ touch tone, local usage, expanded local calling where available, access to emergency 911 service, and single-line directory listing. *Basic service includes services provided to a customer through an alternative technology, as such term is defined in NRS 704.68881(5).*

Sec. 16. NAC 704.680415 is hereby amended to read as follows:

“Fund *to maintain the availability of telephone service* ~~[or Universal Service]~~ means *has the meaning ascribed to it in NRS 704.013. [Fund established by the Commission pursuant to NRS 704.040, which is intended to promote universal telephone service.]*

Sec. 17. NAC 704.68044 is hereby amended to read as follows:

The Administrator of the ~~[F]~~fund *to maintain the availability of telephone* ~~[for Universal S]~~service shall:

1. Conduct periodic audits of contributors to the ~~[F]~~fund *to maintain the availability of telephone* ~~[for Universal S]~~service to ensure that the correct payments are being remitted by the providers of telecommunication service.
2. Verify the qualifications of an applicant who requests support from the ~~[F]~~fund *to maintain the availability of telephone* ~~[for Universal S]~~service.
3. Collect assessments from *all persons furnishing intrastate telecommunication service or the functional equivalent of such service through any form of telephony technology, unless the levy and collection of the assessment with regard to a particular form of technology is prohibited by federal law* ~~[each provider of telecommunication service]~~ and deposit that money into the ~~[F]~~fund *to maintain the availability of telephone* ~~[for Universal S]~~service.

4. Disburse money from the ~~the~~ fund *to maintain the availability of telephone* ~~for Universal-S~~ service to *eligible telecommunications carriers* ~~providers of telecommunication service~~ who qualify for funding in accordance with NAC 704.6804 to 704.68056, inclusive, and with applicable orders of the Commission.

5. Prepare a ~~an~~ *at least* annually a report of all activities of the ~~the~~ fund *to maintain the availability of telephone* ~~for Universal-S~~ service, including:

(a) The total payments into the ~~the~~ fund *to maintain the availability of telephone service for the reporting period* ~~;~~ ~~and~~

(b) An itemization of all disbursements from the ~~the~~ fund *to maintain the availability of telephone service* to each qualified *eligible telecommunications carrier* ~~provider of telecommunication service~~; ~~and~~ ~~.~~

(c) *The results of any audits of contributors conducted pursuant to subsection 1.*

6. Prepare and submit a request to the Commission to collect money for and disburse money from the ~~the~~ fund *to maintain the availability of telephone* ~~for Universal-S~~ service, which includes:

(a) The estimated amount of money required to support the Fund for the following year; and

(b) The percentage rate which must be applied to the intrastate retail *telecommunication* revenues of all ~~of the providers of~~ *persons furnishing intrastate telecommunication service or the functional equivalent of such service through any form of telephony technology, unless the levy and collection of the assessment with regard to a particular form of technology is prohibited by federal law*, to raise the estimated amount of money required, as reported in paragraph (a).

Sec. 18. NAC 704.68046 is hereby amended to read as follows:

To qualify for a disbursement of money from the ~~the~~ fund *to maintain the availability of telephone* ~~for Universal-S~~ service:

1. ~~Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2, i~~ If the disbursement of money is for the purposes set forth in subsections 1 ~~to 4, inclusive~~ *or 2* of NAC 704.68043, the provider of telecommunication service must:

(a) Be an eligible telecommunications carrier; ~~and~~

(b) Be a provider of last resort; and

~~[(b)](c)~~ ~~[Unless otherwise specifically authorized by the Commission,]~~ *If the eligible telecommunications carrier is a small-scale provider of last resort, average its rates for basic service in a manner that is consistent with NAC 704.68085 within the service area in which it is designated as an eligible telecommunications carrier.*

2. If the disbursement of money is for the purposes set forth in subsection 3 of NAC 704.68043 to provide money to ensure that persons with low income have access to available intrastate telecommunication services, the provider of telecommunication service must:

(a) Be an eligible telecommunications carrier; and

(b) If the eligible telecommunications carrier is a small-scale provider of last resort, average its rates for basic service in a manner that is consistent with NAC 704.68085 within the service area in which it is designated as an eligible telecommunications carrier.

~~[(2)]~~**3.** If the disbursement of money is:

(a) For the purpose set forth in subsection 4 of NAC 704.68043; and

(b) Intended specifically to support the provision of access to an Internet service provider pursuant to the provisions of 47 C.F.R. § 54.621,

↳ the provider of telecommunication service is not required to be an eligible telecommunications carrier, but must have a certificate of public convenience and necessity issued by the Commission, *be registered with the Commission pursuant to NAC 704.7862*, or be a county telephone line or system.

~~[(3)]~~**4.** If the disbursement of money is for the purpose set forth in subsection 5 of NAC 704.68043, the provider of telecommunication service must:

(a) Hold a certificate of public convenience and necessity issued by the Commission, *be registered with the Commission pursuant to NAC 704.7862*, or be a county telephone line or system;

(b) Meet the requirements for eligibility set forth in 47 C.F.R. § 54.501; and

(c) Provide services described in 47 C.F.R. § 54.502 at discounted rates pursuant to NAC 704.680469.

Sec. 19. NAC 704.680463 is hereby amended to read as follows:

1. The Commission will establish service areas to determine the area for which a provider of telecommunication service that seeks designation as an eligible telecommunications carrier:

(a) Must provide the telecommunication services set forth in 47 C.F.R. § 54.101(a); and

(b) Is eligible to receive federal universal service support.

2. ~~Except as otherwise provided in subsections 3, a]~~ A service area established by the Commission pursuant to subsection 1 must be identical to the study area of *a rural telecommunication provider* ~~the provider of last resort of basic service that provides basic network telecommunication service within that area].~~

3. In an area served by a nonrural *telecommunication provider* ~~telephone company],~~ any person may ~~petition]~~ *request and* the Commission ~~for the]~~ *may establish* ~~ment of]~~ a service area ~~that does not comply with the requirement set forth in subsection 2]~~ *which is different from the certificated service area established by the Commission for a nonrural telecommunication provider.* In ~~determining whether to establish]~~ *establishing* a ~~n alternative]~~ service area *pursuant to subsection 1,* the Commission will consider:

(a) Whether the establishment of *the* ~~an alternative]~~ service area will promote competition;

(b) Whether the establishment of *the* ~~an alternative]~~ service area will promote universal service;

(c) The potential effect that establishment of *the* ~~an alternative]~~ service area may have on the ~~F]~~ *fund to maintain the availability of telephone* ~~for Universal S]~~ service; and

(d) Any other factor that the Commission determines to be relevant.

4. In an area served by a rural telecommunication provider, no person may petition the Commission for establishment of a service area that does not comply with the requirement set forth in subsection 2, unless:

(a) The provider of telecommunication service who seeks designation as an eligible telecommunications carrier requests the Commission to redefine the service area of the rural telecommunication provider and otherwise intends to comply with the requirements of 47 C.F.R. § 54.207; or

(b) The Federal Communications Commission and the Commission, after taking into account recommendations of a Federal-State Joint Board instituted under 47 U.S.C. § 410(c), establish a different definition of service area for rural telecommunication providers.

~~[4]~~5. As used in this section:

(a) “Nonrural *telecommunication provider* ~~[telephone company]~~” means a provider of last resort ~~[of basic service]~~ that does not meet the definition of a rural telephone company, as that term is defined in 47 C.F.R. § 51.5.

(b) “Rural telecommunication provider” means a provider of last resort that meets the definition of a rural telephone company, as the term is defined by 47 C.F.R. § 51.5.

~~(b)~~c) “Study area” means a geographic area defined by the Federal Communications Commission for each provider of last resort ~~[of basic service]~~.

Sec. 20. NAC 704.680464 is hereby amended to read as follows:

A provider of telecommunication service who is designated as an eligible telecommunications carrier is eligible to receive:

1. Federal universal service support pursuant to 47 C.F.R. § 54.201(a); and
2. Money from the ~~[F]~~fund *to maintain the availability of telephone* ~~[for Universal S]~~service for the purposes set forth in NAC 704.68043, *and under the conditions set forth in NAC 704.68046.*

Sec. 21. NAC 704.680469 is hereby amended to read as follows:

A provider of telecommunication service who provides intrastate telecommunication service to an eligible school or library shall provide such service at discounted rates:

1. In accordance with the procedures and by the percentages set forth in 47 C.F.R. § 54.505; and
2. To the extent that federal universal service support or money from the ~~[F]~~fund *to maintain the availability of telephone* ~~[for Universal S]~~service is available to reimburse the amount of the discount.

Sec. 22. NAC 704.68047 is hereby amended to read as follows:

1. A provider of telecommunication service that provides intrastate telecommunication service to an eligible school or library at a discounted rate may file an

application with the Commission requesting a disbursement of money from the ~~F~~fund to *maintain the availability of telephone* ~~[for Universal S]~~service for the amount of the discount if:

- (a) The eligible school or library has met the requirements set forth in NAC 704.680468; and
 - (b) Federal universal service support is not available to pay the entire amount of the discount.
2. The application filed pursuant to subsection 1 must include:
- (a) The identity of each school and library to which discounts in the rates for intrastate services will be provided;
 - (b) A detailed description of each service that will be provided to each school and library, including, without limitation, references to intrastate tariffs on file at the Commission, if applicable;
 - (c) The nondiscounted rate for each service that will be provided;
 - (d) The percentage of discount that is applicable to each service;
 - (e) The difference between:
 - (1) The annual revenues that would be generated if the provider of telecommunication service provided the intrastate services to the schools and libraries at nondiscounted rates; and
 - (2) The annual revenues that will be generated at the discounted rates;
 - (f) Information which demonstrates that the nondiscounted rate is the lowest corresponding price charged by the provider of telecommunication service to nonresidential customers who are situated similarly to a particular school or library for similar services; and
 - (g) Information which demonstrates that federal universal service support is not available for the calendar year to reimburse the amount of the discount in the rate for intrastate services.

3. The Commission will issue an order approving, denying or modifying an application filed pursuant to this section within 90 days after receipt of the application.

Sec. 23. NAC 704.680472 is hereby amended to read as follows:

1. An eligible telecommunications carrier who provides telecommunication service to a public or private nonprofit provider of health care that serves persons in a rural area shall, to

the extent that federal universal service support or money from the *fund to maintain the availability of telephone service* ~~[Fund for Universal Service]~~ is available, charge that provider of health care rates for available intrastate eligible telecommunications services that are no higher than the urban rates for such services, as determined pursuant to 47 C.F.R. § 54.605.

2. A provider of telecommunication service who provides access to an Internet service provider to a public or private nonprofit provider of health care that ~~[services]~~ *serves* persons in a rural area, shall provide credits for toll charges associated with such access pursuant to 47 C.F.R. § 54.621(a).

Sec. 24. NAC 704.680473 is hereby amended to read as follows:

1. A provider of telecommunication service who is designated as an eligible telecommunications carrier and who provides intrastate eligible telecommunications services to a provider of health care pursuant to NAC 704.680472 may file an application with the Commission requesting a disbursement of money from the *fund to maintain the availability of telephone service* ~~[Fund for Universal Service]~~ for an amount equal to the difference between the urban rate and the rural rate for those services, as those rates are determined pursuant to 47 C.F.R. §§ 54.605 and 54.607.

2. Any provider of telecommunication service who *offers* ~~[provides]~~ to a provider of health care intrastate access to an Internet service provider may file an application with the Commission requesting a disbursement of money from the *fund to maintain the availability of telephone service* ~~[Fund for Universal Service]~~ for the costs of the toll charges for such access.

3. A disbursement of money from the *fund to maintain the availability of telephone service* ~~[Fund for Universal Service]~~ will be made for the purposes set forth in subsections 1 and 2 only if:

(a) The provider of health care to whom the telecommunications carrier provides the discounted service meets the requirements set forth in NAC 704.680471; and

(b) Federal universal service support is not available to pay the entire amount of the discount or costs of the toll charges.

4. An application filed pursuant to this section must include:

(a) The identity of each provider of health care to which discounted intrastate services will be provided at a discounted rate;

(b) A detailed description of each service that will be provided to each provider of health care, including, without limitation, references to intrastate tariffs on file at the Commission, if applicable;

(c) The rural rate for each service that will be provided, as determined pursuant to 47 C.F.R. § 54.607;

(d) The urban rate for each service that will be provided, as determined pursuant to 47 C.F.R. § 54.605;

(e) The difference between the annual revenues that would be generated if the provider provided the intrastate services to the provider of health care at the rural rate and the annual revenues that will be generated at the urban rate;

(f) The amount of money requested to support access to an Internet service provider; and

(g) Information which demonstrates that federal universal service support is unavailable for the calendar year to pay the amount of the discount or the costs of the toll charges.

5. The Commission will issue an order approving, denying or modifying an application filed pursuant to this section within 90 days after receipt of the application.

Sec. 25. NAC 704.680474 is hereby amended to read as follows:

1. To be eligible as a qualifying low-income subscriber for the purposes of NAC 704.680475 and 704.680477:

(a) The total household gross income of the subscriber must not exceed:

(i) *175 ~~{150}~~ percent of the federally established poverty levels set forth for the number of persons in the household of that subscriber if telecommunication service is provided by a competitive supplier which is an incumbent local exchange carrier;*

(ii) *150 percent of the federally established poverty levels set forth for the number of persons in the household of that subscriber if telecommunication service is provided by a small-scale provider of last resort, a competitive supplier which is not an incumbent local exchange carrier or is a provider of telecommunication service that has registered with the Commission pursuant to NAC 704.7862;*

(b) The subscriber receives benefits from one or more of the following programs of assistance:

- (1) Medicaid;*
- (2) Food stamps;*
- (3) Supplemental security income;*
- (4) Federal public housing assistance;*
- (5) Low-income home energy assistance;*
- (6) Temporary Assistance for Needy Families Program; or*
- (7) National School Free Lunch Program; or*

(c) The subscriber's name appears on the list provided by the Department of Health and Human Services pursuant to NRS 707.470.

~~(b)d~~) The residential premises at which the subscriber receives telecommunication service must be the principal place of residence of the subscriber; and

~~(e) e~~) The subscriber must have only one telephone line serving his residential premises.

2. To demonstrate the qualification set forth in paragraph (a) of subsection 1, the subscriber must submit to the provider of telecommunication service that serves the subscriber~~:~~

~~(a) D~~ documentation which demonstrates the total household gross income of the subscriber from one or more of the following sources:

~~(H)a~~) The subscriber's most recent federal income or tribal tax return *for the subscriber's household;* or

~~(2)b~~) All statements of income, as that term is defined in 47 C.F.R. § 54.400(f), for the subscriber's household for 3 consecutive months within the ~~[same calendar year]~~ *last 12 months.*

~~(b)3.~~ *To demonstrate the qualification set forth in paragraph (b) of subsection 1, the subscriber must submit to the provider of telecommunication service that serves the subscriber*

~~D~~ documentation which proves that the subscriber receives benefits from one or more of the following programs of assistance:

- (a) Medicaid;
- (b) Food stamps;
- (c) Supplemental security income;

- (d) Federal public housing assistance;
- (e) Low-income home energy assistance;
- (f) Temporary Assistance for Needy Families Program; or
- (g) National School *Free* Lunch Program.

4. To demonstrate the qualification set forth in paragraph (c) of subsection 1, the subscriber's name must appear on the current list provided by the Department of Health and Human Services.

~~[3]~~**5.** The documentation required pursuant to subsection 2, *3 or 4, as applicable*, must be presented to and accepted by the *eligible telecommunications carrier* ~~[provider of telecommunication service]~~ before the *eligible telecommunications carrier* ~~[provider of telecommunication service]~~ may enroll the subscriber in the lifeline or link up services. An *eligible telecommunications carrier* ~~[provider of telecommunication service]~~ shall retain such documentation in accordance with 47 C.F.R. § 54.417, as that section existed on September 7, 2005.

Section 26. NAC 704.68048 is hereby amended to read as follows:

1. To qualify for money from the ~~[F]~~*fund to maintain the availability of telephone* ~~[for Universal S]~~ service to keep basic *service* rates at an affordable level *pursuant to NAC 704.68043(1) and (2)*, a small-*scale* provider of last resort ~~[of basic service]~~ must meet the following requirements:

(a) Its rates for interstate and intrastate switched access must be in parity, or the small-*scale* provider *of last resort* must agree to carry out a plan approved by the Commission designed to achieve parity for those rates within the time specified by the Commission; and

(b) Its monthly basic recurring flat rates for basic service ~~[, exclusive of the charge for a subscriber line, must be between \$8 to \$16 for residential customers and \$16 to \$20 for business customers.]~~ *must be reasonably comparable to rates charged for similar services in urban areas*, or the small-*scale* provider *of last resort* must agree to carry out a plan approved by the Commission designed to set those rates ~~[within these ranges]~~ *at reasonably comparable rates charged for similar services in urban areas* within the time specified by the Commission.

2. Any disputes regarding the qualification of a small-*scale* provider of last resort ~~{of basic service}~~ to receive money from the ~~{F}~~fund *to maintain the availability of telephone* ~~{for Universal S}~~service will be resolved by the Commission at the request of the Administrator or of any other interested party.

3. If a small-*scale* provider of last resort is qualified pursuant to this section to receive money from the ~~{F}~~fund *to maintain the availability of telephone* ~~{for Universal S}~~service, an opposing party who disputes that determination has the burden of demonstrating that the small-*scale* provider *of last resort* should not be allowed to receive money to support its basic service rates.

4. A small-*scale* provider of last resort ~~{of basic service}~~ who is qualified pursuant to this section to receive money from the ~~{F}~~fund *to maintain the availability of telephone* ~~{for Universal S}~~service shall calculate its overall rate of return by using the common return on equity as determined in NAC 703.27138 and the information relating to the overall rate of return which must be included in an application for a rate change filed pursuant to NAC 703.27132. To be eligible to receive money from the ~~{F}~~fund pursuant to this section, the level of earnings of the small-*scale* provider *of last resort*, as calculated pursuant to subsection 1 of NAC 704.68056, must be below the rate of return authorized for the small-*scale* provider *of last resort* by the Commission~~{for eligibility to receive money from the Fund}~~. A request for money from the ~~{F}~~fund *to maintain the availability of telephone* ~~{for Universal S}~~service is subject to audit by the Administrator or the Commission *and its Staff*.

Sec. 27. NAC 704.6805 is hereby amended to read as follows:

1. *After the Commission has conducted a proceeding pursuant to Section 14, {A large} a competitive supplier that is a* provider of last resort ~~{of basic service}~~ may file a petition with the Commission to receive money from the ~~{F}~~fund *to maintain the availability of telephone* ~~{for Universal S}~~service to keep its rates for basic services at an affordable level. ~~{The large provider of last resort of basic service}~~ *Such carrier* has the burden of demonstrating that circumstances exist which justify its eligibility to receive money from the ~~{F}~~fund *to maintain the availability of telephone* ~~{for Universal S}~~service.

2. The Administrator may distribute money from the ~~{F}~~fund *to maintain the availability of telephone* ~~{for Universal S}~~service for a *competitive supplier that is a* ~~{large}~~

provider of last resort ~~[of basic service]~~ pursuant to this section only to the extent authorized by the Commission.

3. *A competitive supplier that is a provider of last resort who receives funds from the Administrator for the purposes set forth in NAC 704.68043(1) or (2) shall certify to the Commission annually that it has used money from the fund to maintain the availability of telephone service for its intended purposes as set forth in NAC 704.68043 and 47 U.S.C. § 254, and shall include the following:*

a. *In the case of a monthly per-line reimbursement to recover the cost of providing service determined pursuant to Section 14(2), the carrier shall provide a certification to the Commission on a Commission-approved form posted on the Commission's website and shall include:*

(i) *The monthly number of high-cost customers served by the eligible telecommunications carrier during the reporting period established by the Commission; and*

(ii) *A corporate officer of the eligible telecommunications carrier must affirm the information filed pursuant to this subsection is true and accurate by making a notarized attestation.*

Sec. 28. NAC 704.68056 is hereby amended to read as follows:

1. ~~[Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2, u]~~ Upon its initial request for money from the ~~[F]fund~~ *to maintain the availability of telephone* ~~[for Universal S]~~service, and once every 4 years thereafter, a *small-scale* provider of *last resort* ~~[basic service]~~ shall submit sufficient information to demonstrate its level of earnings pursuant to NAC 703.27116~~[504]~~ to 703.27146, inclusive, as appropriate.

2. ~~[Except as otherwise provided in NAC 704.6805, a]~~ A provider of telecommunication service does not have to submit information on its earnings or rates if:

(a) The provider is *a competitive supplier* ~~[regulated pursuant to a plan of alternative regulation pursuant to NAC 704.68474 to 704.68498, inclusive];~~

(b) The provider is requesting a one-time disbursement of money from the ~~[F]fund~~ *to maintain the availability of telephone* ~~[for Universal S]~~service to extend or improve basic service; or

(c) The provider is requesting a disbursement of money from the ~~FF~~fund *to maintain the availability of telephone* ~~for Universal S~~service pursuant to NAC 704.68047 *or* ~~704.680473~~ ~~for 704.680478~~.

3. An application for a disbursement of money from the ~~FF~~fund *to maintain the availability of telephone* ~~for Universal S~~service by a small-scale provider of last resort ~~of basic service~~ to maintain affordable rates for basic service must be submitted directly to the Administrator. All other ~~petitions~~ *applications* must be submitted to the Commission.

4. *Except as otherwise provided in subsection 3,* ~~A~~an application to the Administrator must be submitted not later than 180 days before the beginning of the calendar year for which the money is being requested. *An* ~~petition~~ *application of a competitive supplier submitted* to the Commission must be submitted not later than 270 days before the beginning of the calendar year for which the money is being requested.

5. *Except as otherwise provided in subsection 3,* ~~FF~~the Commission will issue an order which fully or partially approves or denies *an* ~~petition~~ *application* submitted to it within 120 days after receiving the ~~petition~~ *application*.

6. The Administrator shall submit his report to the Commission which sets forth the amount of money needed for the Fund for the next calendar year and the recommended percentage rate to be assessed on intrastate retail revenues not later than 120 days before the beginning of the next calendar year. The Commission will issue an order regarding the report filed by the Administrator pursuant to this section within 90 days after the date on which the report is filed.

7. The Commission may~~:~~

~~(a) — For the initial year of operation of the Fund for Universal Service, specify different deadlines for the filings pursuant to NAC 704.6804 to 704.68056, inclusive; and~~

~~(b) — G~~grant a deviation or waiver from the deadlines for the filings pursuant to NAC 704.6804 to 704.68056, inclusive, to the extent it determines that the deviation or waiver is in the public interest.

TEXT OF REPEALED SECTION

NAC 704.680462 Application for temporary waiver from requirement to offer certain services by provider seeking designation as eligible telecommunications carrier; conditions for approval; period for validity of waiver. (NRS 703.025, 704.040, 704.210, 704.6873)

1. Notwithstanding the provisions of NAC 704.680461, a provider of telecommunication service who seeks designation as an eligible telecommunications carrier may file with the Commission an application for a temporary waiver from the requirement to offer:

- (a) Single-party service;
- (b) Access to enhanced 911 service; or
- (c) Toll limitation,

↳ if the provider requires additional time to complete upgrades to its network that are necessary to provide any or all of those services.

2. The Commission will approve an application for a temporary waiver that is filed pursuant to subsection 1 only upon a finding that:

- (a) Exceptional circumstances prevent the provider of telecommunication service from providing any or all of the services set forth in subsection 1; and
- (b) The provider of telecommunication service otherwise meets the requirements set forth in NAC 704.680461.

3. If the Commission approves an application for a temporary waiver pursuant to subsection 2, the Commission will specify the period for which the waiver is valid. Such a period must not be longer than the period that the Commission determines is necessary for the provider of telecommunication service to complete the necessary upgrades to its network.

4. The Commission will issue an order granting, denying or modifying an application for a temporary waiver that is filed pursuant to subsection 1 within 90 days after receipt of the application.